
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, January 9, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance……..…………………………........Board Member John Penney 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call .................................................................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of November 26, 2024 minutes  
B. Layover of December 5 and 12, 2024 minutes 

 
7. Consent Agenda….…………………………………………….………………….…… Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments shall lay over until 

the second board meeting after they are first introduced) 
                        

9. Reports of Standing Committees…………..………………………………..…..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee…………………………………………………….John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Affixing Compensation and Other Benefits for the Clerk of the Circuit Court 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

3. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason 
Rossi, et al.) 
 

B. Zoning Committee ....................................................... .Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-05-24 A Map Amendment to rezone 10+- Acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agriculture-Related Business District for the property that is 
commonly known as 16562 W. Campbell Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Durand 
Township, District 1 to be laid-over. 

2. Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 2 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a 
Solar Farm) on a 33.39 +- Acre Site commonly known as 5626 Tipple Road / 5303 
Dailette Road (PIN: 15-17-100-008), Rockford, Il 61102, in Rockford Township, District 
9 to be laid-over. 

3. Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 4.5 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka 
a Solar Farm) on a 71.09 +- Acre Site commonly known as 2799 N. Springfield Avenue 
(PIN: 11-08-401-003), Rockford, Il 61101, in Rockford Township, District 5 to be laid-
over. 

4. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ........... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
Appointments read in on December 12, 2024 
A. Twelve Mile Grove Cemetery Association, Annual Compensation: None 

1. Ronald Mitchell (Reappointment), Pecatonica, Illinois, to serve a six-year term, expiring 
December 2030 

2. Kent E. Peterson (Reappointment), Pecatonica, Illinois, to serve a six-year term, 
expiring December 2030 

 
11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 3  

12. Announcements & Communications ......................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, January 23, 2025 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 





























CONSENT 
AGENDA 



All applying organizations have complied with the requirements of the Winnebago

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31240 1
NORTHERN IL RIFLE & 
PISTOL CLUB 01/06/25-04/07/25 $1,152.00

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

The Following Have Requested a Class D,E,& F Limited Annual License
LICENSE # OF

# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31241 1
AMERICAN LEGION POST 
#288 01/01/25-12/31/25 $5,000.00

31242 1

COLONEL THOMAS G. 
LAWLER VFW POST #342 
AUXILIARY 01/10/25-01/10/26 $4,000.00

Deputy Clerk Daisy Carrillo

Date

This concludes my report,

9-Jan-25LORI GUMMOW

The Following Have Requested a Class C, One Time Emergency License

Winnebago County Clerk

RAFFLE APPLICATION REPORT

Presently the County Clerk's office has  Raffle Applications submitted by
 3  different organization for 3  Raffles.

County Raffle Ordinance.  All fees have been collected, bonds received and all
individuals involved with the raffles have received the necessary Sheriff's

Department clearance.

The Following Have Requested A Class A, General License

The Following Have Requested a Class B, MULTIPLE (2, 3 OR 4) LICENSE



Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



SPONSORED BY: JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

SUBMITTED BY: FINANCE COMMITTEE 

2025 CR 

RESOLUTION AFFIXING COMPENSATION AND OTHER BENEFITS 
FOR THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

WHEREAS, the Clerk of the Circuit Court is an Elected Office Holder who is an Officer of the 
State Judiciary; and 

WHEREAS, unlike other elective offices, the Clerk of the Circuit Court may have his or her 
salary or other benefits increased or decreased during his term; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the following schedule of salaries is hereby adopted: 
Clerk of the Circuit Court 
December 1, 2024 – November 30, 2025 $105,727 plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 
December 1, 2025 – November 30, 2026 The salary above plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 
December 1, 2026 – November 30, 2027 The salary above plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 
December 1, 2027 – November 30, 2028 The salary above plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 

* The cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) shall be based on the most current All Urban Consumers (CPI-U)
available on November 1st for the year being adjusted published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics,
not to exceed 4%.

** The annual stipend shall be in addition to, but separate and apart from the salary and shall be 
appropriated each year by the Illinois General Assembly to the Supreme Court, which shall distribute such 
stipend in an annual lump sum payment to the Clerk of the Circuit Court. [705 ILCS 105/27.3].    

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall be eligible for any 
Health Plan and shall pay the same cost for individual, dependent and retiree health insurance coverage 
as County employees covered under AFSCME Local 473 Collective Bargaining Unit retroactive to 
December 1, 2024. 



                BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Circuit Clerk. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption and the compensation amount shall take effect retroactive to December 
1, 2024. 

         Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
 AGREE   DISAGREE 

 JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN   JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN   JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

 PAUL ARENA    PAUL ARENA 

 JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

 KEITH MCDONALD   KEITH MCDONALD 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY   JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 CHRISTINA VALDEZ    CHRISTINA VALDEZ  



 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
Winnebago, Illinois, this ______day of  ______________________, 2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2025 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF PENDING LITIGATION 
(Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason Rossi, et al.) 

WHEREAS, Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason Rossi, et al., is a pending civil action against 
Winnebago County Sheriff Deputy Defendants, filed in the United States District Court for the 
Northern District of Illinois, as case number 3:21-cv-50349; and 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff therein has agreed to settle all claims he has against the 
Defendants, for the sum of Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00); and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee, after having reviewed the facts and circumstances 
of the aforementioned case and after having conferred with the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney, through his assistant state’s attorney, has determined it is in the best interests of the 
citizens of Winnebago County to settle this case on the terms set forth above.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County State’s Attorney is hereby authorized to settle the 
aforementioned lawsuit by paying the Plaintiff therein the sum of Two Hundred Twenty-Five 
Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Winnebago County Treasurer, Winnebago 
County Clerk, and Winnebago County Finance Department are authorized and directed to 
prepare and deliver to the Winnebago County State’s Attorney one or more County Warrants 
totaling Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00); payable as directed by the 
State’s Attorney.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption.  

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 



AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                      PAUL ARENA 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

    CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 



ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
ZONING COMMITTEE 

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
January 9, 2025 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

  PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE LAID OVER:

1. Z-05-24 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 10+- ACRES FROM THE AG,
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE A2, AGRICULTURE-RELATED
BUSINESS DISTRICT requested by Dustin Barlett on behalf of River Bend Seed, LLC,
Applicant, represented by Amy Silvestri, Attorney, for the property that is commonly known as
16562 W. Campbell Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Durand Township.
PIN:  Part of  PIN: 05-32-200-009     C.B. District:     1
Lesa Rating: NA             Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (7-0)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (6-0)

2. ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL FOR A 2 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 33.39 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY
KNOWN AS 5626 TIPPLE ROAD / 5303 DAILETTE ROAD (PIN: 15-17-100-008),
ROCKFORD, IL 61102, IN ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP, District 9, requested by Fox Sparrow
Solar, LLC (an indirect subsidiary of Trajectory Energy Partners, LLC), Lessee, represented by
James Rodriguez, Attorney and Mack Gapinski, Project Manager.
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (3-4)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (0-6)

3. ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL FOR A 4.5 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 71.09 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY
KNOWN AS 2799 N. SPRINGFIELD AVENUE (PIN: 11-08-401-003), ROCKFORD, IL
61101, IN ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP, District 5, requested by North Springfield Solar, LLC (an
indirect subsidiary of Nexamp, Inc.), Lessee, represented by Jim Griffin, Attorney and Jack
Curry, Project/Development Manager.
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (0-7)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (0-6)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

4. COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not
intended as an official public notice):

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, February 12, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in
Room 303 of the County Administration Building.

• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, February 26, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the
County Administration Building.











































UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259 

Announcements & Communications 
Date: January 9, 2025 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission the following:

a. Byron Station Unit 2-Request for Information for an NRC Post-Approval Site
Inspection for License Renewal Inspection Report 05000455/2025011

b. Certificate of Compliance No. 9316, Revision No. 13, for the Model NOS. AOS-25A,
AOS-50A, AOS-100B, and AOS-100A-S Packages

c. Federal Register/Vol. 89, No. 246/Monday, December 23, 2024/Notices

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago
County Treasurer the following:

a. Collateralization Report – as of November 30, 2024
b. Investment Report - as of December 1, 2024
c. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances –November, 2024

3. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications Quarterly Franchise
Fee Payments for the following:

a. Town of Rockton, IL
b. Harlem, IL, Township of Winnebago County

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

 

c. Town of Roscoe, IL 
 

4. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a 
Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste (LPC-PA16) Description of Project: 
Permanent closure of previous facility at 3333 Kishwaukee Street, Rockford, IL. A 
permit is pending for a new facility to be operated at 3315 Kishwaukee Street, 
Rockford, IL.  

http://www.wincoil.us/


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda 
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Affixing Compensation & other Benefits for the Clerk of the Circuit Court
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason Rossi, et al.)
	Zoning Committee
	Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 2 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a Solar Farm) on a 33.39 + - Acre Site
	Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 4.5 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a Solar Farm) on a 71.09 + - Acre Site
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



